UNCLASSIFIED

AD NUMBER

ADC006604

CLASSIFICATION CHANGES

TO:

unclassified

FROM:

restricted

LIMITATION CHANGES

TO:

Approved for public release; distribution is unlimited.

FROM:

Distribution authorized to DoD and DoD contractors only; Foreign Government Information; SEP 1974. Other requests shall be referred to British Embassy, 3100 Massachusetts Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20008.

AUTHORITY

DSTL ltr dtd 12 Dec 2006; DSTL ltr dtd 12 Dec 2006

THIS PAGE IS UNCLASSIFIED

ERDE TR 189 MAR 1 8 1977

UK RESTRICTED

BR51436

Procurement Executive Ministry of Defence

Explosives Research and Development Establishment - Rocket Propulsion Establishment

Decl OADE

& DEVEL, man Comment SCIENTIFIC AND TECHNIC THIS MATERIAL IS TO BE SAFFGUARDED RMATION DIVISION IN ACCORDANCE WITH DOD 5200.1.

Explosives Research and Development Establishment

Technical Report No. 189

Compatibility and Stability Testing of Solid Propellants by Heat Flow Calorimetry Part 2. Further Developments (U)

RESTRICTED

D. G. Davies M. G. Farey

September 1974

 \square \square THIS DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY DF HER BRITANNIC HAJESTY'S GOVERNMENT It is issued for the information of such pursons only as need to know its contents in the course of their official duties. Any person other then the suthurised holder, upon obtaining possession of this document by finding or therwise, should forward it together with his neme and address in a closed involops to DIRECTORATE SECURITY 2 PROCUREMENT EXECUTIVE, MINISTRY OF DEFENCE PRINCES HOUSE, KINISHAY, LUNDON WC2E 604 Latter postage need not be prephid, other postage will be refu ALL PERSONS ARE HEREBY MARNED THAT THE UNAUTHORISED RETENTION DR DESTRUCTION OF THIS DOCUMENT IS AN OFFEN AGAINST THE OFFICIAL SECRETS ACT. Waltham Abbey For overseas release conditions see inside cove

U.K. Restricted

Essex

20

9 \mathfrak{n} 146,705

20090108 014

RELEASE CONDITIONS FOR OVERSEAS DISTRIBUTION

- 1. THIS INFORMATION IS RELEASED BY THE UK GOVERNMENT TO THE RECIPIENT GOVERNMENT FOR DEFENCE PURPOSES ONLY.
- 2. THIS INFORMATION MUST BE ACCORDED THE SAME DEGREE OF SECURITY PROTECTION AS THAT ACCORDED THERETO BY THE UK GOVERNMENT.
- 3. THIS INFORMATION MAY BE DISCLOSED ONLY WITHIN THE OEFENCE OEPARTMENTS OF THE RECIPIENT GOVERNMENT AND TO ITS DEFENCE CONTRACTORS WITHIN ITS OWN TERRITORY, EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE AUTHORISED BY THE PROCUREMENT EXECUTIVE, MINISTRY OF OEFENCE, OEFENCE RESEARCH INFORMATION CENTRE. SUCH RECIPIENTS SHALL BE REQUIRED TO ACCEPT THE INFORMATION ON THE SAME CONDITIONS AS THE RECIPIENT GOVERNMENT.
- 4. THIS INFORMATION MAY BE SUBJECT TO PRIVATELY-OWNEO RIGHTS.

В

A

- 1. THIS INFORMATION IS RELEASED BY THE UK GOVERNMENT TO THE RECIPIENT GOVERNMENT FOR DEFENCE PURPOSES ONLY.
- 2. THIS INFORMATION MUST BE ACCORDED THE SAME DEGREE OF SECURITY PROTECTION AS THAT ACCORDED THERETO BY THE UK GOVERNMENT.
- 3. THIS INFORMATION MAY BE OISCLOSEO ONLY WITHIN THE DEFENCE DEPARTMENTS OF THE RECIPIENT GOVERNMENT AND TO THOSE NOTED IN THE ATTACHED LIST, EXCEPT AS OTHER-WISE AUTHORISEO BY THE PROCUREMENT EXECUTIVE, MINISTRY OF OEFENCE, OEFENCE RESEARCH INFORMATION CENTRE. SUCH RECIPIENTS SHALL BE REQUIRED TO ACCEPT THE INFORMATION ON THE SAME CONDITIONS AS RECIPIENT COVERNMENT.
- 4. THIS INFORMATION MAY BE SUBJECT TO PRIVATELY-OWNED RIGHTS.
- 1. THIS INFORMATION IS RELEASED BY THE UK GOVERNMENT TO THE RECIPIENT GOVERNMENT FOR DEFENCE PURPOSES ONLY.
- 2. THIS INFORMATION MUST BE ACCORDEO THE SAME DEGREE OF SECURITY PROTECTION AS THAT ACCORDEO THERETO BY THE UK GOVERNMENT.
- 3. THIS INFORMATION MAY BE OISCLOSED ONLY WITHIN THE OEFENCE DEPARTMENTS OF THE RECIPIENT GOVERNMENT, EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE AUTHORISED BY THE PROCUREMENT EXECUTIVE, MINISTRY OF OEFENCE, OEFENCE RESEARCH INFORMATION CENTRE.
- 4. THIS INFORMATION MAY BE SUBJECT TO PRIVATELY-OWNED RIGHTS.

D

С

- 5. THIS INFORMATION IS RELEASED FOR INFORMATION ONLY AND IS TO BE TREATED AS OISCLOSED IN CONFIDENCE. THE RECIPIENT GOVERNMENT SHALL USE ITS BEST ENDEAVOURS TO ENSURE THAT THIS INFORMATION IS NOT DEALT WITH IN ANY MANNER LIKELY TO PREJUDICE THE RIGHTS OF ANY OWNER THEREOF TO OBTAIN PATENT OR OTHER STATUTORY PROTECTION THEREFOR.
- 6. BEFORE ANY USE IS MADE OF THIS INFORMATION FOR THE PURPOSE OF MANUFACTURE. THE AUTHORISATION OF THE PROCUREMENT EXECUTIVE, MINISTRY OF OEFENCE, DEFENCE RESEARCH INFORMATION CENTRE MUST BE OBTAINED.

25 3

U.K. Restricted

RESTRICTED

EXPLOSIVES RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ESTABLISHMENT, GJ. Buil, Technical Report No 189 September 1974 Compatibility and Stability Testing of Solid Propellants by Heat Flow Calorimetry (O) Part 2: Further Developments (U)

by

4 C. D. G. Davies, D. al M G Farey

SUMMARY

The effects of variations in test procedure have been examined and a standard method of testing and interpretation is proposed using the Silvered Vessel test propellant (F527/327) as substrate.

A preliminary investigation into the use of other propellant compositions as substrate is described.



Further copies of this technical report can be obtained from Defence Research Information Centre, Station Square House, St Mary Cray, Orpington, Kent. BR5 3RE

CONTENTS

		Page No
1	INTRODUCTION	5
2	EFFECT OF VARIABLES IN TEST PROCEDURE ON THE HEAT GENERATION OF A DOUBLE-BASE PROPELLANT	5
	2.1 Time to Reach Thermal Equilibrium after Insertion of Sample into Calorimeter	5
	2.2 Effect of Sample Mass and Volume of Available Oxygen in the Sample Container	6
	2.3 Effect of Water Content of Sample Vessel	8
	2.4 Proposed Test Procedure for Compatibility Tests on Colloidal Propellants	8
3	EFFECT OF THE ADDITION OF STABILISING MATERIALS ON THE HEAT GENERATION OF A PROPELLANT	10
	3.1 Effect of Addition of Stabilisers to Unstabilised Double-Base Propellant	10
	3.2 Effect of Addition of Extra Stabilisers to a 2-NDPA Stabilised Double-Base Propellant	11
4	COMPATIBILITY TESTING OF COLLOIDAL PROPELLANTS USING A STANDARD DOUBLE-BASE PROPELLANT AS SUBSTRATE	12
	4.1 Tests at $80^{\circ}C$	12
	4.2 Tests at Temperatures Lower than 80° C	13
	4.3 Conclusions	14
5	COMPATIBILITY TESTING USING OTHER COLLOIDAL PROPELLANTS AS SUBSTRATE	15
6	REFERENCES	16
Tabl	.es 1 - 5	17 - 21

1 INTRODUCTION

A preliminary report on the use of heat flow calorimetry for compatibility testing of colloidal propellants has been published,¹ in which the feasibility of the method was evaluated, by measuring the effect of the addition of a number of compatibility test materials (plastics, rubbers, etc) on the heat generation of a double-base propellant.

In order to ascertain the most suitable compatibility test procedure, the effect on the heat generation of a double-base propellant caused by variations in test procedure (sample mass, volume of available oxygen, etc), or caused by the addition of extra stabilisers, inert material, or moisture, has now been investigated. From the results obtained, a standard method for future test procedure, conditions, and interpretation of the results is proposed for this propellant. One potential advantage of heat flow calorimetry is that any propellant composition may be used as substrate for this test, and not one standard reference propellant, as is used in the present Silvered Vessel compatibility test. The heat generation of a number of different propellants has therefore been measured and the effect of the addition to these of a few selected compatibility test materials have been measured from temperatures of 80° C to as low as 40° C.

2 EFFECT OF VARIABLES IN TEST PROCEDURE ON THE HEAT GENERATION OF A DOUBLE-BASE PROPELLANT

The measured rate of heat generation of a propellant sample is dependent on other factors besides temperature. Since the propellant is in a sealed sample vessel the physical and chemical changes in the propellant with time are also influenced by the volume of free space and the amount of available oxygen and moisture sealed into the vessel. The effects of variation in these experimental conditions and also the time for the sample to equilibrate with the temperature of the calorimeter have been measured.

2.1 <u>Time to Reach Thermal Equilibrium after</u> Insertion of Sample into Calorimeter

The normal procedure for measuring the heat generation of a sample is to place the sample vessel, which has been at ambient temperature, into the

calorimeter which already contains the reference material at the elevated test temperature. Therefore, for a time after insertion in the apparatus, the sample and reference are out of thermal balance, and the output of the apparatus does not correspond exactly with the heat generation of the sample in spite of the compensation system. Information on the typical error during this initial period and the time taken before accurate and reproducible readings are produced, was obtained by inserting into the calorimeter a sample vessel filled with cold inert material (glass beads). The differential output of the two heat flow discs monitored by the calorimeter, and the temperature inside it, were recorded until steady readings were obtained. The results, shown for typical calorimeters in Table 1, indicate that although the calorimeter is at the correct temperature within 12 hours after insertion of a sample, it is one to two days before measurements of heat generations from the apparatus are completely reliable. Poor reproducibility in this period will also occur due to unavoidable variations in the insertion procedure. Practically, as far as a compatibility test is concerned, it is necessary therefore for both the heat generation of the propellant alone, and the heat generation of the propellant/test material mix to be measured in the same calorimeter using the same reference vessel, in order that a meaningful comparison of results may be made in the 0 - 2 day period, though these will still be subject to some error.

2.2 Effect of Sample Mass and Volume of Available Oxygen in the Sample Container

If the propellant is packed into the sample vessel in air, a concentration of oxygen will be sealed into the container and this will be consumed during the test. As this oxygen is used up, a change in the rate of heat generation of the propellant due to a decrease in oxygen-nitric oxide and other oxidation reactions occurs, therefore different volumes of available oxygen in the vessel may cause the propellant to give different rates of heat generation as a function of time. As oxygen is consumed, and other propellant degradation gases are evolved, changes in pressure in the sample vessel will develop dependent on the volume of free space relative to the mass of the propellant. These pressure changes have been observed to affect the rate of the propellant degradation reactions for some propellants,² although no explanation was offered.

The heat generation from sample vessels (60 cm³ capacity) containing 30, 40 or 50 g (the maximum that could be conceivably used) of F527/327 double-base propellant (Table 2) sealed in air were measured for about 16 days at 80° C using the same calorimeter and reference vessel in all cases. The graphs obtained are shown in Figure 1. As expected the graphs differed in the period 0 - 2 days due to the different thermal masses of the samples as they attained thermal equilibrium with their surroundings. When the residual oxygen in the vessel was used up the rate of heat generation was observed to drop sharply and give a minimum. Obviously this occurred first in the sample with least available oxygen (50 g propellant) and last in the sample with most available oxygen (30 g propellant). One day after this minimum had occurred in all the samples however, there was no significant difference between the rate of heat generation per unit mass between the three samples. When the first two days only.

The effect of less available oxygen in the sample vessel, as would occur by the addition of extra material for a compatibility test, was investigated by two methods - (a) by adding inert material to propellant in the sample vessel and (b) by flushing the vessel with nitrogen before sealing. The effect of the 2.5 or 5% addition of inert glass beads (density 2.8 g/cm²) to the propellant was, as expected, to progressively move the minima due to loss of oxygen in the vessel to a shorter ageing time (Figure 2). The shift and the differences between these results were however extremely small. The effect on the heat generation of F527/327 propellant at 80°C of flushing the sample vessel with nitrogen before sealing is shown in Figure 3. After temperature equilibration no minimum was observed in the trace, and after 5 days ageing of a 50 g propellant sample there was no significant difference between the rate of heat generation of a sample sealed under air and one sealed under nitrogen. The rates at which oxygen reacts with double-base propellants and the nature of the gaseous products have been shown to be very dependent upon the propellant composition, different stabilisers and ballistic modifiers having pronounced effects upon the reactions involved.² The effects of oxygen on heat generation would therefore be expected to be influenced by propellant composition.

Comparisons of heat generated at 80° C by a N-methyl-4-nitroaniline stabilised propellant F528/214 (Table 2) packed in air and nitrogen are shown in Figure 4. During the first two days the nitrogen filled sample evolved more heat than that packed in air, which is in contrast to the behaviour of F527/327 (2-nitrodiphenylamine stabilised) under similar conditions. During the middle period of the test a maximum produced by the air packed sample was increased in magnitude and displaced on the time scale by the sample flushed with nitrogen. From these results it can be seen that there is no regular advantage to be gained by flushing with nitrogen.

2.3 Effect of Water Content of Sample Vessel

Some materials which require testing for compatibility, such as rubbers, can absorb relatively large amounts of water if left in a humid atmosphere for some time before testing. The effect any additional moisture would have on the heat generation of F527/327 propellant was therefore evaluated.

The heat generation of two samples of propellant and 5% neoprene have previously been compared,¹ where one neoprene was dried over phosphorus pentoxide, the other having absorbed 5% water (the rubber under normal laboratory conditions contained <u>ca</u> 1% moisture). No detectable difference was observed between the heat generation of the two samples. The heat generation of normal F527/327 propellant (<u>ca</u> 0.2% water content) is shown in Figure 5, together with that for samples containing 2 and 5% additional distilled water. Whilst these higher rates of heat generation from the wet samples confirm the expected incompatibility of water, they also indicate that moisture levels of a few per cent in a test material would have little effect on the compatibility of that material, since the extra water introduced with 5% of test material would increase the water content of the mixture with the propellant by only approximately 0.1 - 0.2%.

2.4 <u>Proposed Test Procedure for Compatibility Tests</u> on Colloidal Propellants

2.4.1 Time and Temperature

The thermal decomposition reactions of nitrate esters are found to have an apparent activation energy of about 140 - 170 kJ/mole, in which case an

accelerated ageing test lasting only one or two days at 80° C would be equivalent to ten years storage at 25° C.³ In many cases however, these are not the only or even the principal reactions which take place during normal storage of colloidal propellants. In particular, when a propellant is mixed with a compatibility test material other reactions of lower activation energy may take place. For an activation energy of 84 kJ/mole, more typical of the majority of normal chemical reactions, an accelerated ageing test lasting 19 days at 80° C is necessary to be equivalent to ten years storage at 25° C.⁴ Conventionally tests lasting 20 - 30 days at 80° C have, of experimental necessity, been used in the past for compatibility testing, and the evidence of these calculations is that this is the most suitable time scale and temperature for routine heat flow calorimetry testing also. Though heat flow calorimetry testing can concievably be performed at lower temperatures, a disproportionately long test time would be required for routine testing in order to guarantee adequate Service life.

2.4.2 Sample Mass and Gaseous Environment

In order for some oxygen to be present in the sample vessel throughout the time scale of the test, a very low mass of propellant would have to be used in the vessel (the output from this would be more difficult to measure) and a continuously varying atmosphere of depleting oxygen content would be present above the propellant. This continuously varying atmosphere was also found unsuitable for temperature dependence calculations in some earlier work and is therefore not favoured. The procedure of packing the vessel with a large mass of propellant under a nitrogen atmosphere is one possible method, but is time consuming if done effectively enough to guarantee reproducibility and as has been shown earlier the effect differs with propellant composition. The second method therefore, and the one normally employed, was to pack the maximum mass of propellant (for ease of measuring the heat evolved) into the vessel in an air atmosphere (for reproducibility). This method produced depletion of oxygen in less than 5 days at 80°C and thereafter comparison between samples could be made for a long period, from 5 - 20 days in an oxygen-free atmosphere. With F527/327, and most propellants, this time scale 5 - 20 days also corresponds to a relatively more linear variation in rate of heat generation with time.

2.4.3 Proportion of Propellant to Test Material

The proportion of test material relative to propellant has been kept low for compatibility tests for the following reasons. If a large proportion of material is added to propellant in the sample vessel, it may affect the rate of heat generation solely because it has displaced a large volume of available oxygen from the vessel and not because of chemical reactions. Also, interest in this test is primarily in the reactions occurring in the propellant, not in the test material. By using a low proportion of test material the contribution to the total heat generated from degradation reactions of the material, reaction of acids on the material, heat of absorption of nitroglycerine, etc is kept to a minimum; addition of 5% material to the propellant has therefore been favoured.

Figure 6 shows how increasing the quantity of material under test, in this case natural rubber, increases the quantity of heat generated by the test propellant F527/327 at $80^{\circ}C$; it is therefore important that a standard addition of test material is used when testing compatibility by this method.

3 EFFECT OF THE ADDITION OF STABILISING MATERIALS ON THE HEAT GENERATION OF A PROPELLANT

3.1 Effect of Addition of Stabilisers to Unstabilised Double-Base Propellant

The heat generation of two plasticised but unstabilised nitrocellulose/ nitroglycerine mixes was initially measured over 8 days at 80° C. Propellant compositions are shown in Table 2. The rate of heat generation of F488/2368 plasticised with triacetin rose extremely rapidly and the propellant fumed and was removed after 4 days at 80° C. In contrast the otherwise identical F488/2369 mix, but plasticised with dibutyl phthalate, was reasonably stable for greater than 8 days. This difference is probably due to hydrolysis of triacetin to diacetin in the F488/2368 propellant, with liberation of acetic acid which would accelerate the nitric ester decomposition.

The effect on the heat generation of the dibutyl phthalate plasticised propellant F488/2369 of the addition of 2% and 5% stabilising compounds was then determined over 7 days at 80° C. "Propellant-grade" samples of 2-NDPA,

p-NMA and resorcinol were obtained from the propellant manufacture section for this purpose. Results obtained are shown in Figure 7.

The addition of 2-NDPA to unstabilised propellant was observed to produce a slightly higher rate of heat generation in the period 1 - 3 days until a minimum in the trace occurred, presumably associated with complete oxygen consumption in the system. Thereafter the sample produced much lower rates of heat generation and showed good stabilising action in that the rate of heat generation was not rapidly increasing as was that of the unstabilised propellant.

The addition of resorcinol produced significantly higher rates of heat generation initially, and the minimum in the trace corresponding to oxygen depletion appeared sooner, these effects are no doubt associated with oxidation reactions of resorcinol. Thereafter the resorcinol stabilised propellants continued to have higher heat generations than both unstabilised material and 2-NDPA stabilised propellant. Whilst some of this significant effect may be due to more rapid reaction of resorcinol with degradation products and acids than 2-NDPA and a higher heat of reaction, also side-reactions where resorcinol is reacting with its own degradation products may be contributing to this effect.⁵

The addition of p-NMA increased the rate of heat generation of the propellant by an unexpected degree. As p-NMA is reputed to have no direct reaction with propellant ingredients or its own degradation products,⁵ more rapid reaction with propellant degradation products, and higher heats of this reaction would not appear sufficient to explain this effect. Repeating these experiments with recrystallised p-NMA did not significantly alter the heat generation shown in Figure 7. No explanation can be offered for this behaviour at present.

3.2 Effect of Addition of Extra Stabilisers to a 2-NDPA Stabilised Double-Base Propellant

In order to study the effects of stabilisers over a longer time scale than in the previous sections, and also to examine the effect of the addition of a stabilising material in a compatibility test, the effect of the addition of

<u>ca</u> 2 and 5% of 2-NDPA, p-NMA and resorcinol respectively on the heat generation of F527/327 was determined by mixing the stabilisers and propellant by hand in the vessel and heating for 20 days at 80° C. This substrate propellant F527/327 is stabilised with 0.5% 2-NDPA.

As also noted in experiments on the unstabilised propellant, the addition of extra 2-NDPA was observed to decrease the rate of heat generation of the propellant throughout the 20 days at 80° C, and the time of ageing corresponding to oxygen depletion (minimum in the trace) also increased. The addition of 4% stabiliser had a greater effect than 2% stabiliser (Figure 8).

The addition of p-NMA increased the rate of heat generation of the propellant throughout the 20 days at 80°C, as shown in Figure 9. Though an increase in rate of heat generation may be due to increased rate or heat of reaction between p-NMA and nitric ester decomposition products, these increases were higher than expected and are being further investigated. The increase however was not as high as that obtained by contact between the propellant and an incompatible material (see later sections).

The addition of resorcinol to F527/327 increased the rate of heat generation very significantly over 20 days at $80^{\circ}C$ (Figure 10), the amount of extra heat evolved being such that resorcinol would have been deemed incompatible by this method for use in this propellant, because of the excessive extra reactions occurring. This extra heat evolved probably comes from the side-reactions of the resorcinol stabiliser where it reacts with its own decomposition products.⁶

4 <u>COMPATIBILITY TESTING OF COLLOIDAL PROPELLANTS USING</u> A STANDARD DOUBLE-BASE PROPELLANT AS SUBSTRATE

4.1 Tests at 80°C

The rates of heat generation in 30 compatibility tests on mixtures of F527/327 propellant (50 g) and test material (2.5 g), packed into the sample vessel in air atmosphere, have been measured over about 20 days at 80° C. These results are collated in Table 3 and presented as a ratio of the rate of heat generation of the propellant/test material mix to the rate of heat generation of the propellant alone at various times of storage. The test materials in

Table 3 are also arranged in sections, determined by the percentage effect the material has on the time to fuming in the Silvered Vessel compatibility test. If these results are studied the following points emerge for compatibility testing by Heat Flow Calorimetry using F527/327 as substrate at $80^{\circ}C$:

- Materials which were incompatible or showed a high degree of reaction with the propellant (effect on Silvered Vessel fume time greater than 33%) gave higher ratio in the heat flow calorimetry over the 20 day test as a whole.
- (ii) Compatible materials (effect on Silvered Vessel -33 to +33%) had no heat flow calorimetry ratio of greater than about 2 2.1 at any time during the 2 20 day period.
- (iii) Incompatible materials had heat flow calorimetry ratios of at least 2.0 at some time during the 2 - 20 day period. This high ratio may be present throughout (eg Tretobond) or may develop after the test has been in progress for some days (eg Rigid PVC), illustrating the need to extend the test to about 20 days. `(Only one exception has been noted to this conclusion, Araldite 901 hardener, and this was a borderline material by both compatibility tests.)
- (iv) Some materials compatible by previous Silvered Vessel test have high reaction rates with the propellant in the first 2 days at 80°C (eg ethyl cellulose sample and Tufnol), an effect the Silvered Vessel test does miss. Unfortunately these do occur in the 0 - 2 day period when results may have some error due to the calorimeter warm-up time. These high readings can be and were confirmed however by a compatibility test at a lower temperature when these high reaction rates extend over a longer time scale.

4.2 Tests at Temperatures Lower than 80°C

Routine compatibility testing at temperatures lower than 80°C would have to last correspondingly longer periods of time in order to correspond with an adequate life-time at ambient storage temperatures. But tests at lower temperatures have certain applications, eg a test at 80°C may give high rates

of reaction in the first 2 days of test when results are subject to some error, or give erroneous results if the material itself is decomposing at these temperatures.

Using F527/327 propellant, the test could be adequately performed at temperatures down to 60° C. A normal compatible material (Delrin acetal resin) which produces heat flow calorimetry ratios of 0.94 to 1.31 over 20 days at 80° C, also produced ratios regarded as normal and compatible over 7 days at 60° C. Two test materials which gave very high ratios in the 0 - 2 day period at 80° C, which then decreased at longer ageing times, were confirmed to have a high rate of reaction with the propellant by tests at 60° C. These high heat flow calorimetry ratios then continued well after the 0 - 2 day warm-up period. These results are shown in Table 4.

By the use of other propellant compositions as substrate which have higher rates of heat generation, compatibility tests could be successfully done at lower temperatures. Results are shown in Table 4 for the p-NMA stabilised propellant F528/214 at 50° C, and for SC, a high carbamite content propellant, at 40° C.

4.3 Conclusions

Compatibility testing of materials with colloidal propellant can conveniently be performed by heat flow calorimetry at 80° C using a standard double-base propellant as substrate. Though an indication of a material's compatibility is usually obtained within 7 days, it is necessary to continue the accelerated ageing for about 20 days in order to ensure adequate Service life. Judgement of results for compatibility will be similar to those indicated in Section 4.1. With this propellant it may in future be more economic in terms of instrument usage to measure the heat generation of the sample from, for example, 0 - 7 days, and then unless the test material is already indicated as incompatible, transfer the sample to an oven at 80° C between 7 and 15 days and then reinsert in the calorimeter for further readings in the period 15 - 20 days ageing.

If any test material produces high rates of heat generation in the first two days of ageing only, or gives results indicating that the material itself has decomposed at 80° C, then a compatibility test may be also performed at 60° C over a longer period of time.

5 <u>COMPATIBILITY TESTING USING OTHER</u> COLLOIDAL PROPELLANTS AS SUBSTRATE

Due to the sensitivity of the heat flow calorimetry technique it has the potential advantage of being applicable to any propellant composition. Consequently, tests could be conducted on mixtures of the test material with Service propellants instead of with a special standard one such as F527/327. Figures 11 and 12 show the heat generation over 20 days at 80°C of a number of single, double-base and composite modified propellants, these results were obtained using 50 - 60 g of sample packed into the vessel in air. As expected differences were obtained in the overall heat generated by these propellant compositions but, more importantly, large variations were obtained in the manner in which their rates of heat generation varied with time. Somce propellants (EJC90 and NCP/302/47) gave rates of heat generation which increased steadily during the tests, ATN(D28)/19 produced an initially steady increase up to 15 days, this then increased very rapidly and culminated in the bursting disc of the sample vessel rupturing near the end of the 20 day test period. Other propellants (BDI(D1)/4 and FNH) produced rates of heat generation which rose quite sharply to a maximum and then slowly decreased. The effects of propellant composition on heat generation properties are being investigated using simple compositions specially formulated for this purpose, but as yet no explanations for the varying behaviour of the propellants shown in Figures 11 and 12 can be advanced.

Some preliminary results for compatibility tests conducted under the standard conditions between a few selected materials and a number of propellant compositions are shown in Table 5; several points of interest emerge from these:

(i) The degree of compatibility between a given material and different propellants, as expected, may vary. For example paraformaldehyde was shown to be relatively compatible with F527/327 propellant by heat flow

calorimetry and Silvered Vessel Test. However the pressure of gaseous decomposition products caused the safety disc of a sample vessel containing a mixture of KU propellant and paraformaldehyde to burst after less than 15 days at 80° C.

(ii) Addition of test materials to propellant such as F528/214 and BDI(D1)/19 which have pronounced maximum rates of heat generation mid-way through the test, caused this maxima to appear either earlier or later as well as increasing the overall rate of heat generation.

These results whilst demonstrating the possibilities of using other propellants for compatibility testing by heat flow calorimetry, also show that it will be necessary to test many more materials with different propellant compositions before any conclusions may be formed as to a standardised method of interpretation.

6 REFERENCES

1	Davies D G, Dedman A J	ERDE TR 80, 1971
2	Van Geel J L C	PhD Thesis
3	Blay N J, Farey M G, Maher P G	ERDE TR 179, 1974
4	Blay N J	"Some Relationships between the
		Stability of Nitrate Esters and
		the Stability of Propellants".
		Third Symposium on Chemical
		Problems connected with the
		Stability of Explosives. Ystad,
		Sweden. 28 - 30 May 1973.
5	Davies D G	ERDE TR 119
6	Davies D G	ERDE TR 126

TABLE 1

$\frac{\text{Heat Evolution from Calorimeter after}}{\text{Insertion of Inert Sample at <math>25^{\circ}\text{C}}$

T (h	ime ours)	Differential Output	Temperature Inside Calorimeter ([°] C)
Before sam	ple insertion		78.5
Insertion	+ 2		78.1
TT	+ 5		78.3
TT	+ 9		78.4
f1	+12		78.5
Calorimete	r 4 @ 80 [°] C		
Insertion	+ 6	- 1	
п	+12	+ 0.5	
TT	+24	+ 0.5	
11	+48	0	
TT	+72	0	
Calorimete	r 3 @ 60°C		
Insertion	+ 6	+11	
TT	+12	+ 5	
н	+24	+ 2	
11	+48	0	
TT	+72	0	

1	I	ł
, '	1	Į
	Į	ļ
1		I
	TUT.	A BLAR

Propellant Composition

2-NDPA			~			0.5	I	
Resorcinol \mathscr{K}	I	1		ı	0.44	I	1	
p-NMA R	ł	I	I	N	I	ı	1.5	
Dibutyl phthalate \mathscr{K}	ı	80	ı	I	ł	6.0	6.0	
Triacetin \mathscr{K}	ω	ı	8	8	8	I	ı	
Nitro- glycerine \mathscr{K}	46	46	45.5	45	45.5	57.1	50.5	
Nitro- cellulose \mathscr{K}	46	46	45.5	45	45.5	36.4	36.0	
Propellant No	F488/2368	F488/2369	F488/2267	F ⁴⁸⁸ /2268	F488/2269	F527/327	F528/214	

		-	TABLE	3		
Compatibility	Tests	at	80°C	with	F527/327	Propellant

.

Maximum in 15 - 20

Material	% Effect on Silvered		HFC Ratio	_ Rate (Rate of	eneration Heat Gene at Days	Propel: eration	lant/Ter Propel:	st Materia: lant	1
	Vessel Test Time	ł	12	1	2	5	6	7	Maximum in 10 - 15	
2 Resin	-81	> 55	> 66	> 100	-	-	-	-	-	
rene rubber	-61	7.6	4.7	1.34	1.52	-	1.89	2.15	- 1	
Contact Adhssive	-63	3.3	2.19	1.80	-	-	-	-	2.63	
rene Latex	-72	5.4	2.07	0.92	0.87	2.97	2.97	-	Burst	1

HMP 7102 Resin	-81	> 55	> 66	> 100	-	-	-	-	-	-
Chloroprene rubber	-61	7.6	4.7	1.34	1.52		1.89	2.15	-	2.83
Bostik Contact Adhssive	-63	3.3	2.19	1.80	-	-	-	-	2.63	5.3
Polystyrene Latex	-72	5.4	2.07	0.92	0.87	2.97	2.97	-	Burst seal	-
Araldite Hardensr 901	-37	2.31	1.82	1.60	1.50	1.75	-	-	1.76	1.91
Vinylite VAGH	-37	1.15	1.16	1.29	1.84	2.54	-	-	3.4	3.7
Rigid PVC	-37	2.03	1.43	1.09	0.98	1.23	-	-	4.62	6.1
Zinc sulphide	- 5	6.0	3.8	2.52	1.72	1.71	-	-	1.45	1.34
Ethyl cellulose Mix 22	- 6	18.3	5.6	2.97	1.71	2.04	2.02	1.99	-	-
Ethyl cellulose Mix 1369	- 8	3.5	2.41	2.06	1.66	1.71	-	-	1.08	-
Flomat polyester resin	+ 3.9	1.42	1.27	1.29	1.27	1.41	1.39	1.60	-	-
Butyl rubber (BS 3227)	+ 6	2.61	2.63	2.00	1.08	-	-	-	1.84	1.82
Delrin acetal resin	15	1.31	1.06	1.01	0.94	0.95	-	-	1.00	1.08
Kemetal	1	1.96	1.59	1.24	0.95	0.90	-	-	1.51	-
Paraformaldehyde	15	- ve	- ve	0.57	1.09	-	-	-	1.90	-
Polypropylene white	0	1.40	1,12	1.11	1.10	1.04	-	-	1.05	-
Polythene PN 220	0	1.22	1.09	1.04	1.05	-	-	-	0.96	-
Alkathene 902/75	5	2.17	1.60	1.49	1.20	-	-	-	1.18	89.1
Ethyl cellulose Mix 71	5	10.2	3.3	2.19	1.74	1.47	1.45	1.42	1.31	-
DAX 505/45	5	3.5	1.91	1.60	1.53	0.98	-	-	1.16	-
DMC L3581 polyester resin	2	2.02	1.99	1.69	0.96	1.25	-	-	-	-
Coupied polystyrene	2	1.27	1.28	1.24	1.14	-	-	-	-	1.14
Fluorosint	16	2.06	1.27	1.32	1.31	1.28	-	-	1.10	-
B590 rubber	2	1.24	1.00	0.98	0.97	0.97	-	-		0.92
Ceiluloss acetats	29	0.90	1.06	1.07	1.08	1.38	-	-	-	1.06
Molecular sieve 5A	35	1.73	1.54	1.40	1.33	1.11	-	-	-	×
Tufnol	57	8.0	1.52	1.72	-	2.17	-	-	2.10	2.40
Natural rubber CS 3105	75	4.6	3.1	0.90	1.24	2.56	-	-	4.53	-
Redux 120 No 80/7034	60	2.75	2.42	2.38	2.06	1.40	-	-	-	-
Subaseal closures	66	2.12	2.33	2.32	1.64	1.61	1,88	-	4.30	-
Araldite Ay 103/Hy 956	169	>50	>20	> 20	> 50	> 20	-	-	τõ	-
Adipic dihydrazide	201	3.9	4.2	4.4	5.6	11.2		-	11.1	-
Tretobond AP 333	169	3.7	2.82	2.19	2.95	3.62	-	-	5.30	-

TABLE 4

.

Compatibility Tests at 40 - 60°C

Propellant	Tempera-	Test Material	HFC Re	ttio =	Rate of	f Heat (Rate of	Generati Heat (ion Prop Jenerati	on Prop	Test Ma	terial
	ture, oc						at Days	ID I			
	-		ᆔᅿ	N	←	S	2	4	5	9	2
F527/327	60	Ethyl cellulose Mix 71	76	14	6.6	4.5	3.1	2.3	1	1	2.06
E	60	Delrin acetal resin	0.66	1.75	1.25	1.20	1.19	1.16	1.40	1.40	1.41
=	60	Natural rubber (CS 3105)	27	7.7	6.2	6.0	5.6	4.0	I	1	I
F528/214	50	Ethyl cellulose Mix 71	2.40	2.23	2.43	I	I	1.98	1.71	1.42	
SC	40	Vinylite VAGH	I	I	4.6	5.8	6.1	2.0	1.67	1.69	ı
For compar.	ison:										
F527/327	80	Ethyl cellulose Mix 71	10.2	3.3	2.2	1.7					
44	80	Delrin acetal	1.31	1.06	1.01	0.94					
ŧ	80	Natural rubber (CS 3105)	4.6	3.1	0.92	1.24					
	80	Vinylite VAGH	1.15	1.16	1.29	1.84					
	-										

RESTRICTED

20

TABLE 5

Compatibility Tests at 80° C Using Various Propellants as Substrate

			-	HFC Ra	ttio = F	late of He	sat Genera	tion Prop Generati	ellant/Te	st Materi lant	al	
Material	Propellant						at De	SA				
		re 2	- HOI	-	Q	ĸ	4	ŝ	9	2	Maximum 1n 10 - 15	Maximum in 15 - 20
Araldite Hardener 901	F527/327	2.31	1.82	1.60	1.50	1.73	1.66	1.75	1		1.76	16.1
	F528/214	2.09	1.74	1.42	1.78	2.06	1.69	1	ı	ı	1.35	1.70
	SC	3.22	3.63	1.56	1.68	I	1	ı	ı	ı	I	1.64
	N	5.03	4.06	2.65	1.36	1.21	1.25	1	1	ı	1.88	1.38
	KU	2.63	2.25	1.92	1.53	1.32	1.23	1.32	.52	1.61	64.1	1.20
Butyl rubber	F527/327	2.61	2.43	2.00	1.08	1.73	I	I	I	ı	1.84	1.82
(BS 3227)	F528/214	1.16	1.01	0.82	1.00	1.14	1.12	I	1	ı	1.23	1.10
	SC	3.84	1.41	1.16	1.14	6.03	1	ı	I	ī	0.73	0.80
	N	10.02	2.52	2.44	2.00	1.52	1.57	1.33	1	E.	71.17	1.12
	KU	2.97	1.83	1.23	1.61	1.46	ı	ı	ı	I	1.09	0.70
	BDI /D1 /4	2.95	2.46	1.76	1.10	1.32	2.08	2.70	I	I	51.1	1.10
Natural rubber	F527/327	4.6	3.1	0.92	1.24	2.56	I	1	I	Ľ	4.53	* t
(CS 3105)	BDI /D1 /4	2.66	1.97	1.05	1.10	1.16	1.16	I	t	ı	1.95	2.44
	ATN/D28/19	1.72	1.58	0.84	0.82	0.79	0.77	0.76	0.74	I	0.77	46.0
Paraformaldehyde	F527/327	- ve	-ve	0.57	1.09	ı	ı	I	I	I	90	ı
	F528/214	-ve	0.38	0.61	0.88	1.03	t	I	t	1	1.92	2.70
	NC	- ve	-ve	1.73	1.90	I	ı	2.25	T	T	I	3.45
	KU	- Ve	-ve	0.81	1.57	I	1.76	1.80	2.43	3.11	burst seal	1
	EJC 90	> 16	ı	1	I	1	I		I	1	I	1
Delrin acetal resin	F527/327	1.31	1.06	1.01	46.0	0.95	I	I	ı	ı	1.00	1.08
	N	1.78	1.41	1.35	1.24	1.03	1.22	ı	ı	ı	1.80	1.74
	BDI /D1 /4	1.45	1.20	1.12	1.08	1.02	1.13	1.15	1.26	•	1.06	1.06
PVC	N	3.71	2.44	2.10	1.67	0.97	0.92	0.80	1.0	0.5	1.0	1.0
	BDI /D1 /4	2.52	1.96	1.61	1.04	1.09	1.27	1.33	1.58	L	0.72	0.73

RESTRICTED







TR 189 Fig.3



TR 189 Fig.4

















U.K. Restricted

<u>TR 189</u> Fig. 11



RESTRICTED

U.K. Restricted



U.K. Restricted

U.K. Restricted

This page is unclassified

REPORT DOCUMENTATION PAGE

(Notes on completion overleaf)

(As far as possible this sheet should contain only unclassified information. If is is necessary to enter classified information, the box concerned must be marked to indicate the classification eg (R),(C) or (S)).

·····	N		
l. DRIC Reference (if known)	2. Originator's Refere ERDE TR 189	ence 3. Agency Reference	4. Report Security Classification R
5. Originator's Code (if known)	6. Originator (Corpora Explosives Resea	ate Author) Name and Location rch and Development Est	ablishment
445050	Essex		
5a.Sponsoring Agency's Code (if known)	6a.Sponsoring Agency	(Contract Authority) Name and	Location
7. Title COMPATIBILITY AN HEAT FLOW CALORI	ID STABILITY TESTI METRY. PART 2:	NG OF SOLID PROPELLANTS FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS (U	; BY ()
7a.Title in Foreign Language	in the case of transl	ations) ·	
7b.Presented at (for conference	e papers).Title, plac	e and date of conference	
8. Author 1,Surname, initials	9a Author 2	9b Authors 3, 4	10. Date pp ref
Davies D G	Farey M G		9.1974 29 6
11. Contract Number	12. Period	13. Project	14. Other References
15. Distribution statement	- -		
Descriptors (or keywords)			
Propellant compatibi	Lity, Compatibilit	ty methods, Stability, H	leat measurement
			(TEST)
Abstract			. ·
The effects of var method of testing and i propellant (F527/327) a	iations in test pr nterpretation is p s substrate.	cocedure have been exami proposed using the Silve	ined and a standard ered Vessel test
A preliminary inve substrate is described.	stigation into the	e use of other propellar	nt compositions as
	U.K. R	estricted (This page	is unclossified)



U.K. Restricted

UNCLASSIFIED rt No 189 RESTRICTED earch and Development Establishment AND STABILITY TESTING OF SOLID PROPELLANTS BY RIFETRY. PART 2: FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS (U) rey M G 12 figs 12 figs 13 figs 14 figs 14 figs 15 figs 15 figs 16 figs 17 figs 18 figs 18 figs 19 figs 10 fig 10 fig	UNCLASSIFIED Technical Report No 189 RESTRICTED Explosives Research and Development Establishment CONFATIBILITY AND STABILITY TESTING OF SCLID PROPELLANCS BY HEAT FLOW CALORINETRY. PART 2: FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS (U) Davies D G, Farey M G September 1974 21 pp, 5 tabs, 12 figs The effects of variations in test procedure have been examined and a standard method of testing and interpretation is proposed using the Silvered Vessel test propellant (F527/327) as substrate. A preliminary investigation into the use of other propellant compositions as substrate is described.(U)
UNCLASSIFIED	UNCLASSIFIED
UNCLASSIFIED	UNCLASSIFIED
RRICTED elopment Establishment TESTING OF SOLID PROPELLANTS BY 1 2: FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS (U)	Technical Report No 189 RESTRICTED Explosives Research and Development Establishment COMPATIBILITY AND STABILITY TESTING OF SOLID PR OPELLANTS BY HEAT FLOW CALORINETRY. PART 2: FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS (U) Davies D G, Farey M G September 1974 21 pp, 5 tabs, 12 figs
ins in test procedure have been examined and a and interpretation is proposed using the latt (F527/327) as substructe.	The effects of variations in test procedure have been examined and a standard method of testing and interpretation is proposed using the Silvered Vessel test propellant (FSZ7/327) as substrate.
ttion into the use of other propellant s described.(U)	A preliminary investigation into the use of other propellant compositions as substrate is described.(U)
UNCLASSIFIED	UNCLASSIFIED

[dstl]

Information Centre Knowledge Services [dstl] Porton Down, Salisbury Wilts SP4 0.IQ Tel: 01980-613753 Fax 01980-613970

Defense Technical Information Center (DTIC) 8725 John J. Kingman Road, Suit 0944 Fort Belvoir, VA 22060-6218 U.S.A.

AD#: C006604 Date of Search: 12 December 2006

Record Summary:

Title: Compatibility and stability testing of solid propellents by heat flow calorimetry Pt 2 further developments Covering dates 1974 Availability Open Document, Open Description, Normal Closure before FOI Act: 30 years Former reference (Department) ERDE TR 189 Held by The National Archives, Kew

This document is now available at the National Archives, Kew, Surrey, United Kingdom.

DTIC has checked the National Archives Catalogue website (http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk) and found the document is available and releasable to the public.

Access to UK public records is governed by statute, namely the Public Records Act, 1958, and the Public Records Act, 1967.

The document has been released under the 30 year rule.

(The vast majority of records selected for permanent preservation are made available to the public when they are 30 years old. This is commonly referred to as the 30 year rule and was established by the Public Records Act of 1967).

This document may be treated as UNLIMITED.



U.K. Restricted

\$